
Adult Social Care and Public Health 
Committee
Date: Wednesday, 8 September 2021
Time: 6.00 p.m.

Venue: The Palace Room, The Floral Pavilion

Members of the public are encouraged to view the webcast (see below) but 
for anyone who would like to attend in person, please contact the box office at 
the Floral Pavilion by telephone on 0151 666 0000, in advance of the meeting. 
All those attending will be asked to wear a face covering (unless exempt) and 
are encouraged to take a Lateral Flow Test before attending. You should not 
attend if you have tested positive for Coronavirus or if you have any 
symptoms of Coronavirus. 

This meeting will be webcast at
      https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Contact Officer: Daniel Sharples
Tel: 0151 691 8271
e-mail: danielsharples@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES 

2. MEMBER DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest.

3. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 12)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 
2021

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

Public Document Pack

https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


Public Questions

Notice of question to be given in writing or by email by 12 noon, Friday 
3 September to the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
(committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to be dealt with in accordance 
with Standing Order 10.

Statements and Petitions

Statements

Notice of representations to be given in writing or by email by 12 noon, 
Friday 3 September  to the Council’s Monitoring Officer ( 
committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to be dealt with in accordance 
with Standing Order 11. 

Petitions

Petitions may be presented to the Committee. The person presenting 
the petition will be allowed to address the meeting briefly (not 
exceeding one minute) to outline the aims of the petition. The Chair will 
refer the matter to another appropriate body of the Council within 
whose terms of reference it falls without discussion, unless a relevant 
item appears elsewhere on the Agenda. Please give notice of petitions 
to committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

Member Questions

Questions by Members to be dealt with in accordance with Standing 
Orders 12.3 to 12.8.

SECTION A - DECISIONS

5. NATIONAL DRUG TREATMENT AND RECOVERY GRANT 
FUNDING (Pages 13 - 56)

6. PUBLIC HEALTH INFORMATION AND ADVICE SERVICE 
COMMISSION (Pages 57 - 62)

SECTION B - BUDGET REPORTS

7. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND 
PUBLIC 

mailto:committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk
mailto:committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk
mailto:committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk


The following item contains exempt information

RECOMMENDATION: That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by 
paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to that Act. The 
public Interest test has been applied and favours exclusion. 

8. NATIONAL DRUG TREATMENT AND RECOVERY GRANT 
FUNDING - EXEMPT APPENDICES (Pages 63 - 66)



This page is intentionally left blank



ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND PUBLIC HEALTH 
COMMITTEE

Thursday, 29 July 2021

Present: Councillor Y Nolan (Chair)

Councillors M Jordan
M McLaughlin

C O'Hagan
Jason Walsh

In attendance: Councillors D Mitchell 
A Wright
P Martin S 
S Jones
C Jones

(for P Gilchrist)
(for S Mountney)
(for K Cannon)
(for T Cottier)
(for S Frost)

Apologies Councillors I Camphor, 
K Cannon
S Frost

T Cottier
S Mountney
P Gilchrist

21 APOLOGIES 

The following apologies for absence were received:

Councillors:  K Cannon, S Frost, T Cottier, S Mountney and P Gilchrist

22 MINUTES 

Resolved – That the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 7 
June 2021 be agreed. 

23 MEMBER DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members were asked to consider whether they had any disclosable pecuniary 
interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection with any item(s) on 
this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state what they were.

The following declarations were made:

Councillor C Jones Personal interest by virtue of her 
employment in the NHS

Councillor C O’Hagan Personal interest by virtue of her 
employment in the NHS

Councillor M McLaughlin Personal interest by virtue of her 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



family’s employment in the NHS and 
Wirral Council’s Children’s Services

Councillor M Jordan Personal interest by virtue of her 
employment in the NHS, her son’s 
employment un the NHS and her 
involvement as a trustee for 
‘incubabies’

Councillor Y Nolan Personal interest by virtue of her 
position as Governor of Clatterbridge 
Cancer Centre

Councillor J Walsh Personal interest by virtue of his 
family members employment in the 
NHS.

24 PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No questions, statements of petitions were received. 

25 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING MONTH 2 (APRIL-MAY) 2021-22 

Graham Hodkinson, Director of Care and Health, introduced the report which 
set out the financial monitoring information for the Adult Social Care and 
Public Health Committee. 

The report provided Members with an overview of budget performance for the 
area. It was reported that work on quarter 1 reporting for financial year 2021-
22 commenced on 1 July 2021 and due to reporting constraints to public 
committee meetings it had not been possible to provide a full quarter 1 update 
at this point. Members were advised that as of month 2 (May), the financial 
outturn for 2021-22 was a small favourable position of £0.35m against a total 
net budget of £113.1m. Members were advised that this represents minor 
improvement on some budget lines but no significant variances. 

The report informed that the forecast anticipates continued uptake by 
providers of the Real Living Wage fee rates as agreed at Committee on 7 
June 2021, and full achievement of the £4.5m saving target against 
community care.

Appendix 1 to the report provided a breakdown of the revenue budget for the 
Adult Care and Health Directorate for 2021/22

The Committee welcomed the update and commented on the positive 
situation at present. 

Resolved – That the report be noted. 

Page 2



26 ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH PERFORMANCE REPORT 

Simon Garner, Health and Care Commissioning Lead introduced the report of 
the Director of Care and Health providing an update on performance in 
relation to Adult Social Care and Health. 

Key elements of the performance report were highlighted including residential 
and nursing care over time demonstrating a stable position and the actual 
numbers of people receiving services has remained similar.

Members were reminded of the extra care provision in Wirral that opened two 
weeks prior to this committee, thus having a positive impact. 

The Health and Care Commissioning Lead advised that there is currently a 
20% capacity in care homes in Wirral, a figure that is slightly higher than in 
neighbouring authorities. It was further reported that 66.67% of Wirral care 
homes had been rated good by the Care Quality Commission, with 28.46% 
requiring improvement and 2.44% requiring improvement.

In response to a question by a Member, the Committee were advised that 
there has been an impact of care home staff needing to self isolate and the 
situation is being monitored alongside guidance of colleagues in public health. 
The Committee were also informed that after completing an exercise, it had 
become apparent that the 20% vacancy rate had been a result of the Covid 
19 Pandemic and typically prior to the pandemic, care homes have carried 
between a 12 and 15% vacancy rate, but covid has increased this. 

Resolved – That the report be noted.

27 INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM AND INTEGRATED CARE PARTNERSHIP 
DEVELOPMENTS - UPDATE 

A Report by the Director of Care and Health set out the policy context for the 
development of Integrated Care Systems (ICS) in the NHS in England, 
specifically highlighting the work to create a Cheshire and Merseyside ICS. 
The report also set out the emerging guidance around developing Integrated 
Care Partnership (ICP) in “ place” and specifically in Wirral. 

The report set out the policy context as follows:

 26 November 2020 -  NHS England/ Improvement (NHSE/I) published 
integrating Care: Next steps to building strong and effective integrated 
care systems across England, subsequently referred to as Integrating 
Care: Next steps 

Page 3



 11 Feb 2021 – The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) 
published the White Paper Integration and innovation: working together 
to improve health and social care for all. On the same day NHSE/I 
issued four documents encouraging Her Majesty’s Government to 
introduce legislation, at the earliest opportunity to place Integrated 
Care Systems (ICSs) “ on a clear statutory footing, but with minimum 
national legislative provision and prescription, and a maximum local 
operational flexibility”.

 25 March 2021 – NHS England and NHS Improvement published the 
NHS Operational Planning and Implementation Guidance for 2021/22, 
setting out that:

 There will be one statutory ICS NHS body and one statutory ICS health 
and care partnership per ICS from April 2022. • 

 Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) functions will be subsumed into 
the ICS NHS body and some NHS England and NHS Improvement 
direct commissioning functions will be transferred or delegated to ICSs. 

 CCG staff below board level who are directly affected will have an 
employment commitment and local NHS administrative running costs 
will not be cut as a consequence of the organisational changes. 

 Through strong place-based partnerships, NHS organisations will 
continue to forge deep relationships with local government and 
communities to join up health and social care and tackle the wider 
social and economic determinants of health. To enable this, ICS 
boundaries will align with upper-tier Local Authority boundaries by April 
2022, unless otherwise agreed by exception. Joint working with local 
government will be further supported by the health and care 
partnership at ICS level. 

 The development of primary and community services and 
implementation of population health management will be led at place 
level, with Primary Care Networks as the building blocks of local 
healthcare integration.

 Every acute (non-specialist) and mental health NHS trust and 
Foundation Trust (FT) will be part of at least one provider collaborative, 
allowing them to integrate services appropriately with local partners at 
place and to strengthen the resilience, efficiency and quality of services 
delivered at-scale, including across multiple ICSs. 

 Clinical and professional leadership will be enhanced, connecting the 
primary care voice that has been a strong feature of Primary Care 
Networks (PCNs) and CCGs, to clinical and professional leadership 

Page 4



from community, acute and mental health providers, Public Health, and 
social care teams.

The report further advised that the intention of the Government to bring 
forward a Health and Care Bill to implement the proposals in the White Paper 
was announced in the Queen’s Speech on 11 May 2021 and the main 
elements of the bill are:

 Driving integration of health and care through the delivery of an 
Integrated Care System in every part of the country.

 Ensuring NHS England, in a new combined form, is accountable to 
Government, Parliament and taxpayers while maintaining the NHS’s 
clinical and day-to -day operational independence.

 Banning junk food adverts pre-9pm watershed on TV and a total ban 
online.

 Putting the Healthcare Safety Investigation Branch on a statutory 
footing to deliver a fully independent national body to investigate 
healthcare incidents, with the right powers to investigate the most 
serios patient safety risks to support system learning.

The report then set out how Integrated Care Systems will be developed with 
reference to guidance published by the NHSE/I on 16 June 2021 setting out 
future ambitions for:

 the functions of the ICS Partnership to align the ambitions, purpose, 
and strategies of partners across each system. 

 the functions of the ICS NHS body, including planning to meet 
population health needs, allocating resources, ensuring that services 
are in place to deliver against ambitions, facilitating the transformation 
of services, co-ordinating and improving people and culture 
development, and overseeing delivery of improved outcomes for their 
population.

 the governance and management arrangements that each ICS NHS 
body will need to establish to carry out those functions including the 
flexibility to operate in a way that reflects the local context through 
place-based partnerships and provider collaboratives. 

 the opportunity for partner organisations to work together as part of 
ICSs to agree and jointly deliver shared ambitions. 

 key elements of good practice that will be essential to the success of 
ICSs, including strong clinical and professional leadership, deep and 
embedded engagement with people and communities, and streamlined 
arrangements for maintaining accountability and oversight. 

  the key features of the financial framework that will underpin the future 
ambitions of systems, including the freedom and mechanisms to use 
resource flexibly to better meet identified needs and to manage 
financial resources at system level. 

Page 5



  the roadmap to implement new arrangements for ICS NHS bodies by 
April 2022 to establish new organisations, appoint leadership teams to 
new statutory organisations and to ensure that people affected by 
change are offered a smooth transition that allows them to maintain 
focus on their critical role in supporting recovery from the pandemic. 

It was further reported that the Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care 
System (ICS) had established a Development Advisory Group (DAG) to 
support the implementation timetable and guidance. The Chief Executive and 
the Director for Adult Care and Health, Wirral Council and the Chief Officer, 
NHS Wirral CCG are part of the DAG. Members were advised that there is 
also representation from Wirral in other ICS governance arrangements such 
as the Partnership Board and joint committee of Cheshire and Merseyside 
Clinical Commissioning Groups.

The report set out an implementation timetable that the ICS is working to that 
is subject to the Health and Care Bill becoming an Act of Parliament. 

Members were advised that In regard to developing Integrated Care 
Partnerships (ICPs) in each place, the Cheshire and Merseyside ICS had set 
out seven expected core features of an ICP:

 ICP Governance – clearly defined formal arrangements for place partners to 
meet and work together to deliver outcomes set by the Health and Wellbeing 
Board (HWB) and ICS.

 ICP nominated ‘Place Lead’ with remit for integrated working who will 
connect with the ICS. 

 Shared vision and plan for reducing inequalities and improving outcomes of 
local people approved by the HWB (underpinned by local population health 
and socio economic intelligence). 

 Agreed ICP development plan.

 Defined footprints (e.g. neighbourhoods) for delivery of integrated care, 
clinically led by PCNs working with social care, community, mental health, 
Public Health, and other community groups. 

 Programme of ongoing public and wider stakeholder engagement at place

 Integrated approach to commissioning between health and Local Authority 
(such as shared posts, joint teams, and pooled budgets) to underpin and 
support the work of the ICP. The seven expected core features are described 
in more detail in Appendix 2. 3.3.9 Work has commenced in Wirral to create 
an Integrated Care Partnership involving the Local Authority, NHS and wider 
partners in health and care. The work is being guided by six core principles:

Page 6



 Organise services around the person to improve outcomes.

 Maintain personal independence by providing services closest to home.

 Reduce health inequalities across the Wirral population. 

 Provide seamless and integrated services to patients, clients, and 
communities, regardless of organisational boundaries.

 Maximise the “Wirral £” by the delivery of improvements in productivity and 
efficiency through integration. 

 Strengthen the focus on wellbeing, including a greater focus on prevention 
and Public Health.

There are four key work streams in the development of an ICP for Wirral. 
These are:

 Integrated governance, including Health and Wellbeing Board development. 

 Developing provider collaboration. 

 Developing integrated commissioning.

 Communications and engagement. 

In response to comments from Members in regards to the complexities of the 
ICS developments it was suggested that an all member workshop be 
arranged to best inform all members of the Council of developments.

Resolved That:- 

(1) The report be noted;

(2) further written reports on the progress of the development of the 
Integrated Care System and Integrated Care Partnerships at future 
meetings be received; and

(3) an all member workshop be held to best inform members of the 
Council of developments. 

28 WIRRAL HEALTH AND CARE COMMISSIONING SINGLE BUSINESS 
PLAN 2021/22 

A report by the Director of Care and Health introduced the DRAFT Wirral 
Health and Care Commissioning (WHCC) Single Business Plan for 2021/22,  

Page 7



as set out in appendix 1 of the report, and the key priorities and workstreams 
that underpin it, and which will contribute towards delivering better outcomes 
for Wirral Residents. 

The report informed that the purpose of the WHCC is to jointly commission all 
age health and care services for residents in Wirral, which have a positive 
impact on the life course of an individual. Members were advised that the key 
to this is the transformation of service delivery which is expected to improve 
the experience of people and to reduce the need for long term care and 
hospital care by:

 Improving the health and wellbeing outcomes for the people of Wirral,
 Reducing health inequalities; and
 Delivering sustainable services, both through the workforce and 

financially.

Members were advised that the Single Business Plan identifies the key focus 
of work over 2021/22 toward delivering these aims. The report further advised 
that the work will be structured around the four key themes of Children and 
Families; Ageing Well; Emotional Health and Wellbeing; Healthy Communities 
and each of the themes are described in the business plan.

In response to comments from Members, The Director of Health and Care 
advised that the WHCC Business Plan supports commitments to working in 
integrated care and that there is work ongoing with air quality groups and the 
plan is linked into regeneration work. 

A comment made by a Member drew attention to a lack of information 
regarding the impact of environmental factors such as access to green space 
as a means to improve mental wellbeing. It was asked that this could be 
included in future reports to Committee on the matter.

In response to a question by a Member it was reported that the impacts of 
long covid are emerging and there is forward planning through the means of 
joint working with the Council and NHS. There is funding available to the NHS 
for provision to treat people with long covid. It was suggested that this 
information be presented to Committee at a later date. 

Resolved – That the report be noted with the request that environmental 
factors be included within future reports along with the impact of long 
covid as it emerges.

29 CARERS SERVICES AND CARERS STRATEGY REVIEW 

A report of the Director of Care and Health, presented by Jayne Marshall, 
Lead Commissioner – Community Care Market), updated Members on the 
current offer to carers, requested support for the establishment of a Carers 

Page 8



Partnership Board (CAPB) and proposed a review of the Council’s Carer’s 
Strategy.

The report advised that Under the Care Act 2014, there is a statutory duty to 
identify, support and assess carers and for carers to be treated with partity of 
esteem alongside the vulnerable people whom they are providing care for. 
There is a requirement to provide support to prevent or delay the needs of the 
carer, and the person they acre for from increasing. It was reported that 
according to the Census 2011 there are 40,340 Carers in Wirral and it is 
expected that this figure will increase when the 2021 Census figures are 
released. Members were advised that the estimated economical value of the 
contribution made by Wirral carers is £851 million per year.

Members were informed that through the Covid-19 pandemic, the activities of 
the carers support have been limited due to Covid-19 restrictions and where 
possible support has been provided through virtual, electronic and tele 
communications.

The repot set out details of the Early Intervention and Prevention and Carers 
(Young Adults Carers)- EIAP and Carers contract and advised that in 2017, 
Wirral Adult Social Care, Children’s Services, Public Health and NHS Wirral 
CCG brought together a range of separate contracts that were being delivered 
by a variety of voluntary, community and faith sector organisations (VCF). It 
was advised that the intention was for the services to be delivered through a 
single delivery vehicle (SDV) to improve the pathway for support for 
vulnerable people and carers, and to offer a seamless, joined up service. 
Members were informed that the contract was awarded to Wirral Health and 
Wellbeing CIC, the partners for the delivery of the contract are:

 Wirral information and Resource for Equality and Diversity (Wired)
 Age UK Wirral
 Wirral MIND
 Barnardo’s Wirral
 Health Junction

The report informed that an advantage to the SDV was to develop closer 
working across the sector and to improve the identification of carers in Wirral. 
It was acknowledged that Carers can be any age, gender and the level of care 
they provide varies depending on the condition of the person they care for. 
Details of the services offered were listed within the report. 

The report further detailed: shot break bed provision, Carers Partnership 
Board, Wirral Strategy for Carers, Carers Strategic developments locally; 
Wirral Council’s Working Carers Policy; Carers Emergency Contact Scheme; 
Carers Covid- 19 vaccinations; PPE for Carers; Improved identification of 
carers; digital resource for carers; unpaid carers project; carers grant review 
and Carers Policy network

Page 9



In response to a question by a Member in relation to dementia carers, it was 
advised that there are courses and helplines available to help carers who care 
for individuals with dementia. 

Resolved – That 

(1) the Adult Social Care and Public Health Committee support the 
development of a new Carers Strategy for Wirral for 2022 and to 
receive a further report back to a future committee; and

(2) the Adult Social Care and Public Health Committee support the 
relaunch of a Carers Advisory Partnership Board to deliver the 
carers agenda subject to a review of the Terms of Reference. 

30 THE DEVELOPMENT OF A SPORT AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY STRATEGY 
FOR WIRRAL - UPDATE REPORT 

A report by the Director of Neighbourhood Services, presented by Andrew 
McCartan, AD – Leisure, Libraries and Engagement provided the committee 
with an update on the development of the future Sport and Physical Activity 
Strategy for Wirral Leisure Services (formerly Leisure Strategy).

The report advised that In November 2020, the Council’s Tourism, 
Communities, Culture and Leisure Committee (TCCL) approved the new 
outline Sport and Physical Activity Strategy, which gave approval for officers 
to commence engagement with residents, communities, and other 
stakeholders to design and deliver a fit-for-purpose and sustainable service 
and included the strategy within the Committee’s ongoing work programme.

The report informed that the key focus of the strategy was to set out the 
priorities for sport and leisure facilities, services and activities and sought to 
redress the balance between being a provider of facilities and tackling 
inequality through preventative, outreach, and early intervention work. 
Members heard how there is not statutory requirement to have a Sport and 
Physical Activity Strategy, but it is seen as good practice to outline the 
council’s plan for leisure services for the period 2020-2025 based on the 
evidence base and emerging Covid-19 landscape. 

The report set out the Government’s position regarding sport and detailed 
Sport England’s ten year strategy introduced in January 2021. Members were 

Page 10



advised that the strategy aimed to transform lives and communities through 
sport and physical activity.

The report detailed the progress in Wirral and advised that following 
Committee approval, the Director of Neighbourhoods agreed that Sport 
England could commission Knight, Kavanagh & Page (KKP) to undertake a 
diagnostic assessment of the Sport England Strategic Outcomes Planning 
Guidance for Wirral Council. The report informed that Sport England produced 
its Strategic Outcomes Planning Guidance to assist local authorities to take a 
strategic approach to maximise the contribution that sport and physical activity 
makes within a given local area, and to ensure that any local investment is as 
effective as possible and sustainable in the long term. The report identified the 
following findings:

(1) The Council is in the process of developing/refining a coherent set of 
outcomes in relation to sport & physical activity’s contribution to health and 
well-being and the reduction of health inequalities underpinned by good levels 
of cross directorate buy-in. This emerging position appears to be gathering 
momentum.

(2) The Council’s insight (in certain areas of the Council) is well developed, 
particularly in respect of its built and outdoor facilities evidence base. The 
development of the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy (2020) had added 
further momentum to this process. Its community-level research into the 
needs and wants of residents, and specifically what interventions may 
influence a change in behaviour will require further attention (as identified in 
the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy), both in respect of its facility offer and 
wider outreach plans. 

(3) Confirmation that the Council is moving away from its former silo-based 
approach to a much more collaborative cross-departmental approach to 
delivering services. 

(4) There was recognition that Senior Officers and Council Elected Members 
are determined to reduce health inequalities and this ambition is widely 
supported. It was however identified as imperative the Council continues to 
communicate well and achieves community buy-in prior to the development of 
a detailed delivery plan.

(5) The Council needs to act decisively to put in place a long-term 
transformational plan for the Borough accompanied by a clear approach in 
respect of resourcing the associated work and facilitating its progress through 
its own decision-making process. The SOPG and Built Facilities Strategy 
evidence base validates an investment strategy for indoor facilities to address 
the fundamental strategic challenge of an ageing, inefficient indoor sport and 
physical activity stock.

Page 11



The report identified four strategic priorities and explained how a public 
consultation had begun to understand the motivations, needs and wants of 
local residents in regard to being physically active. Members heard how 
results of the public consultation would be presented to members for 
consideration at a future committee.

Members welcomed the report and requested that additional information be 
provided in relation to inactivity figures and caner rehabilitation programmes 
available. 

Resolved – That the report be noted.

31 COVID-19 RESPONSE UPDATE 

A report by the Director of Public Health, presented by Elsbeth Anwar, AD-
Public Health provided the Committee with an update on surveillance date 
and key areas of development in relation to Wirral’s Covid-19 response and 
delivery of the Local Outbreak Management Plan.

Members were advised that the Borough remain to have a widespread 
community transmission of covid-19 cases, but there has been a decrease in 
numbers from the week before. The Assistant Director informed that 83.1% of 
the eligible population in Wirral have now have their first dose of the 
vaccination and there has been a variation in the uptake of the vaccine. The 
vaccine has weakened between transmission and deaths but hospital 
admissions remain high. 

Members welcomed the report and commented about the positive feedback 
that had been received by local residents of the support from public health. 

Resolved – That the report be noted.

32 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

Vicki Shaw, Head of Legal Services introduced the report of the Director of 
Care and Health which provided the committee with an opportunity to plan 
and review its work across the municipal year. 

Resolved – That the work programme be noted.

Page 12



Adult Social Care and Public Health Committee

8th September 2021

REPORT TITLE: National Drug Treatment and Recovery 
Grant Funding

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH

REPORT SUMMARY

This report provides the Adult Social Care and Public Health Committee with an update on 
funding received from national government by Wirral Council for Drug Treatment and 
Recovery services.  

Wirral Council has received three funding allocations to achieve reductions in drug related 
deaths, offending and illicit drug use. These are:

1. £2.8 million as part of the ADDER/Accelerator programme for which funding has now 
been provided for a two-year period 2021-2023.

2. £111,364 to increase capacity for residential detox for drug misusers during 2021-22. 
This is the Wirral share of collective funding of £651,991 allocated to Cheshire and 
Merseyside. Wirral has been put forward as the named lead Council to receive this funding 
on behalf of the nine Cheshire and Merseyside councils. 

3. £210,000 to deliver the Individual Placement Support (IPS) scheme, led nationally by 
Public Health England, supporting drug users into employment. This funding is for 2 years. 

The proposed actions affect all wards within the borough.

The decisions requested are key decisions.

The report contains two exempt appendices: 

 Appendix 1: ADDER/Accelerator (Drug Treatment and Recovery) Grant Funding 
Programme - Menu of Interventions. This is confidential by virtue of instruction from 
Government that the information contained within it cannot be publicly released. 

 Appendix 2: Wirral Programme Delivery Plan. This is exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



RECOMMENDATION/S

The Adult Social Care and Public Health Committee is recommended to:

1. Agree to the planned proposals for spending the £2.8million ADDER/Accelerator 
Programme grant funding as set out within the report and in more detail in Appendix 2 
(EXEMPT).

2. Accept the £651,991 in-patient drug detox grant funding allocated on behalf of the 9 
Cheshire and Merseyside councils and accept Wirral’s Council’s share of this 
collective funding of £111,364.

3. Accept the funding of £140,000 per annum for two years granted to Wirral Council to 
deliver the national Individual Placement Support (IPS) into employment scheme. 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 This additional funding allocated to Wirral Council will strengthen the Council’s and 
local partners capacity to deliver a place-based person-centred approach to reduce 
drug related deaths, hospital admissions and offending. 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Other options were considered in relation to developing the Wirral Delivery Plan based 
upon the Menu of Interventions provided by Public Health England. The Wirral 
Programme Delivery Plan was agreed upon following review of local intelligence and 
consultation with a wide range of partners.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 In January 2021, the government announced an additional £148 million funding 
package to reduce drug-related crime and health harms.  This included a joint Home 
Office, Department for Health and Social Care, and Public Health England grant 
funded programme, testing an intensive whole-system approach led by local councils, 
local police authorities, drug treatment and recovery services, with the involvement 
and support of a wider collection of partners, to tackle drug misuse and drug-related 
crime – The ADDER/Accelerator Programme. 

3.2 A report was brough to committee in June of this year outlining the national grant 
funding for drug treatment and recovery awarded to Wirral for 2021/22. Since the June 
report we have had confirmation of further funding allocations to achieve reductions in 
drug related deaths, offending and illicit drug use.  This report provides an update for 
the committee on the three funding allocations received from national government by 
Wirral Council: the ADDER/Accelerator programme, the in-patient detox grant, and the 
individual placement support programme. 

Page 14



3.3 ADDER/Accelerator programme: Wirral has been awarded £2.8 million from the 
ADDER/Accelerator Programme to be spent during the financial years 2021/22 and 
2022/23. Merseyside Police have also been provided with grant funding targeted at 
enforcement and diversion interventions. A key ask is that Councils and local police 
forces work together in designing their delivery plans to achieve the aims and 
outcomes, set out Fig 1. below:

Figure 1: Overview of funding aims and outcomes 

3.3 Wirral submitted a detailed delivery plan, setting out what will be delivered, for how 
much, and by when, as well as highlighting clear links between the interventions to be 
funded and the aims and objectives. This plan was based on the menu of interventions 
provided nationally by Public Health England (See Appendix 1 (EXEMPT), we received 
notification that it had received formal approval from the Home Office and Public 
Health England on June 14th.

3.4 The programme model is underpinned by a monitoring and evaluation framework, and 
we are expected to regularly report back on progress to the national Programme 
Team. Receiving the funding has provided an excellent opportunity to network and 
learn from the other areas and to develop the evidence base for further roll out, future 
Government intervention and a renewed national investment in this field. 

3.5 In order to co-ordinate and develop the delivery plan, and to ensure successful 
delivery and reporting, a multi-agency Wirral Steering Group has been established. 
The Wirral Steering Group undertook a rapid review of current local system deficits to 
develop an understanding of investment needs, based upon the menu of interventions 
provided. When compared to other areas Wirral is one of the areas that has higher 
levels of drug-related deaths, hospital admissions and drug related offending. This 
knowledge informed the development of a local delivery plan that builds on and 
enhances existing local interventions, and which can be delivered through local 
agencies working together in a whole-system approach.

Page 15



Full details of the Wirral Delivery Plan can be found in Appendix 2 (EXEMPT).

We have proposed the additional resources will be used to:
 Strengthen Criminal Justice programmes
 Enhance pathways from Acute Hospital Care to Community Treatment services 
 Enhance specialist mental health support
 Work with community pharmacies for frontine health screening, treatment and 

support, safeguarding, and signposting.
 Increase proactive outreach provision 
 Deliver Primary Care Outreach services
 Respiratory Outreach services
 Mobilise peer Naloxone distribution
 Support for families and peers
 Focus on Early intervention and provision for 18-25’s
 Benzodiazepine & Z-Drug Specialist
 Enhance support to sustain housing and accommodation
 Enhanced support to gain employment skills and employment
 Increase capacity for system co-ordination, monitoring, evaluation and learning

This plan is now further supported by the awarding of two additional grants to expand 
the availaibility of in-patient drug detox,and establish an Individual Placement Support 
(IPS) employment programme for drug users.  

3.6 In-patient detox grant:  Alongside the ADDER/Accelerator programme there is an 
additional national programme to increase capacity for In-patient Medically Managed 
detox facilities and placements. Cheshire and Merseyside Councils have been jointly 
awarded £651,991 to increase local capacity. This total is calculated using the size of 
the estimated drug using, and actual in-treatment, populations in each area.  Wirral 
Council’s allocation is £111,364. Wirral has been put forward as the named lead Local 
Authority to receive this funding on behalf of the nine Cheshire and Merseyside 
councils. 

3.7 Individual placement support programme: This programme is led by Public Health 
England utilising funding provided by the Department of Work and Pensions. It is to 
provide focused and personalised advice, support and mentoring to drug users to 
enable them to gain employment. The key objective is to get people into employment. 
The amount of funding provided to each area is calculated to support the recruitment 
of what is estimated to be the appropriate number of employment advisors to work with 
the in-treatment population in that area. The calculation of £210,000 funding for Wirral 
is to specifically to recruit two full-time employment advisors and a team leader.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The delivery of the ADDER/Accelerator programme is funded via a ring-fenced two-
year grant from the Home Office/Public Health England. This funding can only be used 
to deliver those activities outlined within the Menu of Interventions that comes with the 
programme. The grant cannot be overspent, if there is any underspend, the Council 
will be required to return this to Public Health England.

It is proposed this funding is allocated as follows: 

Page 16



Intervention Annual value 

Enhanced harm reduction provision £613,000
Enhanced recovery support £84,000
Increased integration and improved care 
pathways between the criminal justice and 
other settings, and drug treatment £272,000
Increased pharmacological and psychosocial 
treatment capacity £295,000
System coordination and evaluation £136,000

Total £1,400,000

           
          The programme will be continuously reviewed and evaluated, both locally and 

nationally. 

          In addition to the above Wirral Council is now also due to receive the following:

Intervention Value 
In-patient Detox Funding: (1 year funding for 
2021/22):
Cheshire and Merseyside Councils
Wirral Council allocation

                    

                   £651,991
                   £111,364

Individual Placement Support employment 
programme funding (Funding until 31st March 
2023) 

£210,000

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 Due to the tight timeframe of delivery, the prescriptive set of interventions that have 
been provided, and the very specific functions and purposes that these various funding 
streams can be utilised for, we intend to waive procurement processes. Regulation 72 
of the Public Contracts Regulations allows contracts with providers to be varied to up 
to 10% of the total contract value and the proposed usage of additional grant funding 
falls within that limit. Legal and procurement advice has been sought and continued 
legal support will be provided in relation to these matters.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 Details of roles to be funded utilising these Wirral grants is outlined in Appendix 2 
(EXEMPT). Due to the funding being available for fixed periods these posts will be 
recruited on fixed-term contracts. 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 Risks to the delivery of the project include: 

Page 17



 Delay in implementing partnership work due to continuing pressures presented by 
COVID-19.

 Difficulties in recruiting staff quickly enough to get the programme up to an optimal 
level of performance within the necessary time frame.

 Difficulty in recruiting appropriately qualified staff for a 12-month funding scheme.

 Continuation of service developments and enhancements, including additional 
posts, beyond 12 months if central funding is not extended.   

7.2 These risks will be managed and mitigated by the Wirral Steering Group and monthly 
Programme review meetings with national Programme co-ordinators from PHE and the 
Home Office. Conversations are already planned with partners to identify how we can 
ensure sustainability and continue developments beyond the 2021/22 financial year.

7.3 There is no risk to the Council in accepting this grant funding. The funding can only be 
used to deliver these specific activities as outlined within the Menu of Interventions. 
The grant cannot be overspent, if there is any underspend, the Council will be required 
to return this to PHE.

8.0     ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 In order to co-ordinate and develop the delivery plan, and to ensure successful delivery 
and reporting, a Wirral Steering Group has been established. This Steering Group is 
led by Wirral Council Public Health and includes a wide range of partners as detailed in 
the June 2021 report.
 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure that its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. Equality considerations were a 
key component of the guidance for the programme activities, stating that “all 
interventions should bear in mind the need to ensure access for a range of 
disadvantaged populations: parents who use drugs; black, Asian and minority ethnic 
(BAME) groups; women; LGBTQ+; people with disabilities etc”. We will ensure equality 
implications are reviewed as part of the project delivery. If the proposed use of funding 
is approved an equality impact assessment will be undertaken to ensure the 
interventions are delivered in a way that does not discriminate. 

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no direct environment and climate implications arising from this report. 

REPORT AUTHOR: Dr Elspeth Anwar 
Public Health Consultant
telephone: (0151) 666 5177
email:  elspethanwar@wirral.gov.uk

Page 18

mailto:elspethanwar@wirral.gov.uk


APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Programme Menu of Interventions (EXEMPT)

Appendix 2 – Wirral Programme Delivery Plan (EXEMPT)

Page 19



BACKGROUND PAPERS

Government announced an additional £148 million funding package for reducing drug-related 
crime, and drug related health harm, across the country: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/148-million-to-cut-drugs-crime 

Official Press Release 
- ADDER- Liverpool - FP,  27-07-21.docx

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Adult Social Care and Public Health Committee 7th June, 2021

Page 20

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/148-million-to-cut-drugs-crime


Document is Restricted

Page 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Adult Social Care and Public Health Committee

8th September 2021

REPORT TITLE: INFORMATION AND ADVICE SERVICE 
COMMISSION

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH

REPORT SUMMARY

This report seeks agreement from the Adult Social Care and Public Health Committee to 
progress Public Health’s proposed commissioning intentions for information and advice 
services.

The proposed actions affect all wards within the borough.

The decisions requested are key decisions.

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Adult Social Care and Public Health Committee is recommended to:

1.  Authorise the Director of Public Health to re-commission the Wirral Information and 
Advice service totalling up to £2,332,898 (£1,166,449 per annum) for an initial one-
year contract (1st April 2022 – 31st March 2023) with the option of a one-year 
extension.

2.  Agree that delegated authority be given to the Director of Public Health to award the 
tender to the successful bidder following the tender process.

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 To allow Public Health to implement the commissioning intentions for Information and 
Advice services as outlined in this report.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Other options considered include not having any service in place which would be 
harmful to local residents, given the impact of Covid and policy changes due to impact 
i.e. furlough ending, evictions re-starting, the need for information and advice services 
is essential. 

2.2 A reduced service provision has also been considered however the current service is 
performing 100% over target and the demand for the service is extremely high 
therefore any reduction in capacity would be detrimental to the ability of a service 
provider being able to deliver against the contract.

2.3      It is necessary to recommission the service highlighted in order to comply with Public 
Contract Regulations and Wirral Council Contract Procedure rules.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 Ask Us Wirral is the current Information, and Advice Service in Wirral It is a jointly 
commissioned service with Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group providing advice and 
information to all Wirral residents. The service assists with a wide range of issues 
including benefits advice, debts, employment, housing, relationship and families, legal, 
consumer, immigration and asylum, utilities, phones, travel, transport, holidays, tax, 
education and discrimination. 

3.2 A five-year contract was awarded to Wirral Citizen’s Advice Ltd as the lead provider for 
Ask Us Wirral following a tender process in 2016. This contract is due to end on the 
31st March 2022 and to ensure compliance with Public Contract Regulations and 
Wirral Council contract procedure rules it is necessary to retender this service. The 
current contract value is £946,499 per annum (plus an additional one off COVID-19 
grant at the value of £150,000).

3.3 Since this service was commissioned in 2016 there have been several, significant 
national policy changes e.g., Universal Credit which has resulted in increased and 
unprecedented demand for the service. The service currently supports approximately 
60,000 residents a year and is performing at 180% over target and capacity due to 
demand. There has also been a 40% increase in more complex cases and clients 
presenting with multiple needs requiring intensive case work. Alongside these changes 
several third sector organisations who were supporting clients alongside the service 
have ceased operation or are no longer providing advice which has also contributed to 
the increase in service demand. The COVID-19 pandemic has compounded these 
challenges. The service has seen a further and major increase in demand for 

Page 58



information and advice during the pandemic for issues including food poverty, fuel 
poverty, employment, unemployment, benefits, relationship breakdown, bereavement, 
and domestic abuse. In response the service has adapted its service model to 
accommodate all staff and volunteers working from home and a limited number of 
clients are receiving face to face appointments. Ask Us Wirral have also supported 
both the food hub and welfare assistance programme through the humanitarian 
response to the pandemic. 

Page 59



3.4 This one-year commission (with the option of a further year) will allow for a review of 
information and advice provision across the borough. The review will take into account 
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and changes to national policy to inform the 
provision of information and advice services to best meet the needs of local residents. 
This work has already begun and will inform the commissioning of future information 
and advice services from the 1st April 2023.

3.5 The current contract will continue during the recommissioning process and a period of 
service mobilisation will be built into the tender process to ensure there is no loss of 
service and a seamless transition for existing service users is maintained.

3.6 All Public Health contracts are subject to on-going evaluation as part of a clearly 
defined commissioning cycle, which is designed to maximise return on investment and 
improve outcomes. This methodology ensures that Public Health services (and 
contracts) are consistently and routinely tested against a range of criteria. Criteria 
against which contracts are tested include the following:

 Evidence base e.g. academic research, engagement feedback, Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment

 Performance of targets e.g. financial and activity based and outcomes 
against plans and benchmarking information

 Value for money
 National policy and technical guidance e.g. Public Health Outcomes 

Framework
 Strategic direction e.g. Wirral Plan strategic aspirations (narrowing the 

gap in life expectancy), delivery of Public Health outcomes through 
council services

 Legal and contractual frameworks e.g. incorporate national updates to 
contract templates used for NHS providers.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1     The Public Health grant will fund this contract will an additional contribution from the 
Better Care Fund totalling £300,000 per annum and a contribution from Children’s and 
Families of £42,000 per annum. The value and availability of the Public Health grant 
for 2022/23 onwards is not yet known. The total value of the contract will be 
£2,332,898 (£1,166,449 per annum).

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1     The recommissioning of the service detailed within this report will need to be 
undertaken in accordance with the Public Contract Regulations and Wirral Council 
Contract Procedure rules.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (T.U.P.E.) will 
be applicable.

Page 60



7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 It is necessary to recommission the services highlighted in order to comply with the 
Public Contract Regulations 2015 and Wirral Council Contract Procedure rules. 

7.2 There is always a risk of disruption to service provision during service redesign, 
recommissioning and commencement of new services. To mitigate against this and 
minimise disruption, adequate time to plan for, and implement the mobilisation of new 
services, is built into the procurement process between contract award and 
commencement. 

7.3 The procurement process is also subject to scrutiny and at risk of legal challenge. 
Particular regard is given to contract procedure rules and relevant legislation at all 
stages of the process and the Public Health team works closely with the Procurement 
team to ensure compliance. 

7.4 In the current challenging financial climate, the impact of any future reductions in 
budget or policy implications on the amount of funding available for Public Health is 
unknown. The value and availability of the Public Health grant for 2022/23 onwards is 
not yet known. This risk will be mitigated by the insertion of appropriate termination 
clauses in the contract.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 In order to inform the development and design of the future service, engagement and 
consultation will be undertaken with key partners, stakeholders and local communities. 
This will include:
 Engagement with local commissioners of health and care and community services 

to understand the impact of COVID-19.
 Engagement sessions with a wide range of stakeholders to understand their current 

concerns and challenges that are affecting local residents including any key policy 
changes i.e. furlough ending etc.

 Working with  3rd sector and community partners to engage with local communities 
to understand their needs in relation to information and advice services.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Public Health will adhere to Wirral Council's legal requirement to make sure its policies, 
and the way it carries out its work do not discriminate against anyone. As part of the 
recommission an equality impact assessment (EIA) will be undertaken to ensure all 
equality impacts are considered and relevant actions are taken to mitigate any 
potential negative impacts. The EIA is available here:
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-
assessments

Page 61

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments


10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 During the procurement process, bids will be evaluated on any social value added to 
the service. Bidders will need to consider and demonstrate how they can have a 
positive impact on Wirral’s environment and climate. 

10.2 The content and/or recommendations contained within this report are expected to have 
no direct impact on emissions of carbon dioxide.       

REPORT AUTHOR: Rachael Musgrave
Assistant Director: Consultant in Public Health
email:  rachaelmusgrave@wirral.gov.uk 

APPENDICES

N/A

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Service Specification Information and Advice Services-DN179845
Modelling of Future Needs of Information and Advice Services-DN179845
Invitation To Tender-Contract ID-DN179845

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND PUBLIC HEALTH 
COMMITTEE 

19 NOVEMBER 2020

Page 62

mailto:rachaelmusgrave@wirral.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 63

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes

	5 National Drug Treatment and Recovery Grant Funding
	APPENDIX 1 ADDER Report for Committee June 2021 - FINAL 07.06.21
	APPENDIX 2 ADDER Report for Committee June 2021 - FINAL 07.06.21

	6 PUBLIC HEALTH INFORMATION AND ADVICE SERVICE COMMISSION
	8 National drug treatment and recovery grant funding - exempt appendices
	070621 ADDER App2 EXEMPT FINAL_25.08.21


